

CHAPTER 185

**HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT**

**HOUSE BILL 00-1431**

BY REPRESENTATIVES Scott, Mace, Stengel, Witwer, George, Hoppe, and Young;  
also SENATORS Dennis and Hernandez.

**AN ACT**

CONCERNING WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITY OPERATORS.

*Be it enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Colorado:*

**SECTION 1.** 25-9-101, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

**25-9-101. Legislative declaration.** To assure adequate operation of water and wastewater ~~treatment~~ facilities, and to preserve, the provisions of this article and ~~regulations~~ ANY RULES authorized pursuant thereto are enacted to provide for the examination, classification, and certification of water and wastewater ~~treatment plant~~ FACILITY operators and to establish minimum standards therefor based upon their knowledge and experience, to provide procedures for certification, to encourage vocational education for such operators, to provide a penalty for the wrongful use of the title "certified operator", to require each water and wastewater ~~treatment plant~~ FACILITY to be under the supervision of a certified operator, to provide for the classification of all water and wastewater ~~treatment plants~~ FACILITIES in the state, and to provide a penalty for the operation of a water or wastewater ~~treatment plant~~ FACILITY without supervision of a certified operator.

**SECTION 2.** 25-9-102 (1), (3), (4.5), (4.7), (5), (6), and (7), Colorado Revised Statutes, are amended, and the said 25-9-102 is further amended BY THE ADDITION OF THE FOLLOWING NEW SUBSECTIONS, to read:

**25-9-102. Definitions.** As used in this article, unless the context otherwise requires:

(1) "Board" means the ~~plant~~ WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITY operators certification board.

---

*Capital letters indicate new material added to existing statutes; dashes through words indicate deletions from existing statutes and such material not part of act.*

(3) "Certified operator" means the person who has ~~direct~~ responsibility for the operation of any ~~treatment~~ WATER AND WASTEWATER facility covered under this article and is certified in accordance with the provisions of this article.

(4.3) "DIVISION" MEANS THE WATER QUALITY CONTROL DIVISION WITHIN THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT.

(4.5) "Domestic wastewater treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY" means any facility or group of units used for the treatment of domestic wastewater ~~and~~ OR for the reduction and handling of solids and gases removed from such wastes, whether or not such facility or group of units is discharging into state waters. "Domestic wastewater treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY" specifically excludes individual sewage disposal systems.

(4.7) "Industrial wastewater treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY" means any facility or group of units used for the pretreatment, treatment, or handling of industrial waters, wastewater, reuse water, and wastes that are discharged into state waters. "Industrial wastewater treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY" includes facilities that clean up contaminated ground water or ~~other similar~~ spills; except that such term does not include facilities designed to operate for less than one year or facilities with in-situ discharge.

(4.8) "SMALL SYSTEM" MEANS A WATER OR WASTEWATER FACILITY THAT SERVES A POPULATION OF THREE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED OR LESS.

(4.9) "WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM" MEANS A SYSTEM OF PIPES, CONDUITS, AND ASSOCIATED APPURTENANCES THAT TRANSPORTS DOMESTIC WASTEWATER FROM THE POINT OF ENTRY TO A DOMESTIC WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY. THE TERM DOES NOT INCLUDE COLLECTION SYSTEMS THAT ARE WITHIN THE PROPERTY OF THE OWNER OF THE FACILITY.

(5) "Wastewater treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY" means either a domestic wastewater treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY or an industrial wastewater treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY.

(5.3) "WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITY" MEANS A WATER TREATMENT FACILITY, WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY, WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM, OR WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM.

(6) "Water ~~supply~~ DISTRIBUTION system" means ~~the system~~ ANY COMBINATION of pipes, ~~structures~~ TANKS, PUMPS, ~~and~~ OR OTHER facilities through which a water supply is obtained, treated, and sold or distributed for human consumption or household use, if such system has at least fifteen service connections or regularly serves at least twenty-five individuals THAT DELIVERS WATER FROM A SOURCE OR TREATMENT FACILITY TO THE CONSUMER.

(7) "Water treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY" means the facility or facilities within the water ~~supply~~ DISTRIBUTION system ~~which~~ THAT can alter the physical, chemical, or bacteriological quality of the water.

**SECTION 3.** 25-9-103 (1) and (4), Colorado Revised Statutes, are amended to read:

**25-9-103. Water and wastewater facility operators certification board -**

**composition - repeal of article.** (1) There is hereby created the ~~plant~~ WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITY operators certification board which shall constitute a section of the division of administration of the department and shall consist of ~~nine~~ THIRTEEN members, ~~seven~~ ELEVEN of whom shall be as follows:

(a) A certified ~~Class A~~ water treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY operator WITH A MINIMUM OF FOUR-YEARS EXPERIENCE AND DEMONSTRATED KNOWLEDGE OF AND EXPERIENCE WITH ALL ASPECTS OF WATER TREATMENT, INCLUDING CHEMICAL, PHYSICAL, AND BIOLOGICAL CONTROL ANALYSES, MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES, AND CORROSION AND CROSS-CONNECTION CONTROL;

(b) A certified ~~Class A~~ domestic wastewater treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY operator WITH A MINIMUM OF FOUR-YEARS EXPERIENCE AND DEMONSTRATED KNOWLEDGE OF AND EXPERIENCE WITH ALL ASPECTS OF WASTEWATER TREATMENT, INCLUDING CHEMICAL, PHYSICAL, AND BIOLOGICAL CONTROL ANALYSES, MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION PROCEDURES, AND CORROSION AND CROSS-CONNECTION CONTROL;

(b.5) A certified ~~Class A~~ industrial wastewater treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY operator;

(b.7) A small systems operator who is certified as a ~~Class C or Class D~~ water treatment or wastewater treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY operator;

(c) A representative from the Colorado municipal league;

(d) A representative ~~recommended by~~ OF the department of public health and environment;

(e) A representative recommended by the state water quality control commission;

(f) A CERTIFIED WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM OPERATOR;

(g) A CERTIFIED WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM OPERATOR;

(h) A REPRESENTATIVE FROM THE COLORADO RURAL WATER ASSOCIATION; AND

(i) A CITY MANAGER, MANAGER OF A SPECIAL DISTRICT, OR UTILITY MANAGER IN A CITY, COUNTY, OR CITY AND COUNTY.

(4) This article is repealed, effective July 1, 2004. Prior to such repeal, the ~~plant~~ WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITY operators certification board shall be reviewed as provided for in section 24-34-104, C.R.S.

**SECTION 4.** 25-9-104 (1), (2), (3), (4), (5), the introductory portion to 25-9-104 (6), and 25-9-104 (6) (b), Colorado Revised Statutes, are amended, and the said 25-9-104 is further amended BY THE ADDITION OF A NEW SUBSECTION, to read:

**25-9-104. Duties of the board.** (1) (a) The board shall elect a ~~chairman~~ CHAIR and secretary each year, establish rules ~~and regulations~~ IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 4 OF TITLE 24, C.R.S., setting forth the requirements governing ~~application~~ CERTIFICATION FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITY OPERATORS, INCLUDING

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATION, admission to the examinations, ~~and~~ recording and issuing of certificates for the class of operator for which the applicant is found to be qualified, RENEWAL OF CERTIFICATES, ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATES BASED ON RECIPROCITY, MINIMUM STANDARDS OF OPERATOR PERFORMANCE, AND STANDARDS FOR THE ACCREDITATION OF TRAINING PROGRAMS. The board ~~shall furnish~~ MAY SELECT AND APPOINT ONE OR MORE INDEPENDENT NONPROFIT CORPORATIONS TO CARRY OUT THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE PROGRAM AND EXAMINATIONS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, MAINTAINING RECORDS OF CERTIFIED OPERATORS, NOTIFYING OPERATORS OF EXPIRATION OF CERTIFICATION, PROVIDING INFORMATION ON ACCREDITED TRAINING REQUIREMENTS, PREPARING AND FURNISHING the examination material, ~~and collect~~ COLLECTING fees as set forth in section 25-9-108, ~~The board shall set~~ SETTING the times, dates, and places for holding examinations, one of which shall be given at least annually, ~~grade~~ GRADING examination papers, ~~and evaluate~~ EVALUATING work experience of applicants, EVALUATING CONTINUING TRAINING ACHIEVEMENTS FOR RENEWAL OF CERTIFICATION, AND EVALUATING REQUESTS FOR RECIPROCITY. The board shall ~~maintain~~ ENSURE THAT an office ~~provided by the department~~ IS MAINTAINED for contact with operators and employers. THE BOARD SHALL ALSO ENSURE, THROUGH THE USE OF SUBJECT MATTER EXPERTS, THAT ALL CERTIFICATION EXAMINATIONS TEST FOR INFORMATION THAT IS RELEVANT TO THE KNOWLEDGE THAT IS NECESSARY TO OPERATE THE LEVEL OF FACILITY FOR WHICH CERTIFICATION IS SOUGHT. THE BOARD MAY ADOPT SUCH RULES IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 4 OF TITLE 24, C.R.S., AS ARE NECESSARY TO ENSURE THE PROPER ADMINISTRATION OF THE PROGRAM AND SHALL ENTER INTO CONTRACTS WITH ANY NONPROFIT CORPORATION SELECTED OR APPOINTED BY THE BOARD TO ENSURE THAT EACH NONPROFIT CORPORATION ~~receive~~ RECEIVES applications and fees, ~~conduct~~ CONDUCTS such examinations as may be directed by the board, ~~record~~ RECORDS the results thereof, ~~notify~~ NOTIFY applicants of results, ~~issue~~ RECOMMENDS ISSUANCE OF certificates, CONDUCTS FAILED EXAM REVIEWS, and ~~prepare~~ PREPARES and ~~distribute~~ DISTRIBUTES an annual report. WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE BOARD, A NONPROFIT CORPORATION CONTRACTED WITH BY THE BOARD MAY ENTER INTO SUBSIDIARY AGREEMENTS WITH OTHER NONPROFIT CORPORATIONS, EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTIONS, AND FOR PROFIT CORPORATIONS TO CARRY OUT THE DUTIES ASSIGNED BY THE BOARD. THE BOARD SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR AND SHALL RETAIN THE FINAL AUTHORITY FOR ALL ACTIONS AND DECISIONS CARRIED OUT ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD BY ANY SUCH NONPROFIT CORPORATION, EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTION, OR FOR PROFIT CORPORATION. SUCH AUTHORITY SHALL INCLUDE, BUT SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO, THE AUTHORITY TO MODIFY, SUSPEND, OR REVERSE ANY ACTION OR DECISION OF ANY NONPROFIT CORPORATION, EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTION, OR FOR PROFIT CORPORATION.

(b) IN ORDER TO QUALIFY FOR CONSIDERATION TO ADMINISTER THE DUTIES SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION, A NONPROFIT CORPORATION MUST HAVE EXPERTISE IN TRAINING AND TESTING PROCEDURES, AS WELL AS DEMONSTRATED KNOWLEDGE OF WATER AND WASTEWATER TREATMENT, COLLECTION, AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEMS.

(2) The board ~~shall~~ MAY promote and assist in regular training schools and programs designed to aid applicants and other interested persons to acquire the necessary knowledge to meet the certification requirements of this article.

(3) The board shall establish ~~not more than four~~ classes of certified water treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY operators, ~~not more than four~~ classes of domestic

wastewater treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY operators, ~~and not more than three~~ classes of industrial wastewater treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY operators, ~~which~~ classes OF WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM OPERATORS, CLASSES OF WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM OPERATORS, CLASSES OF OPERATORS FOR SMALL SYSTEMS, AND CLASSES OF OTHER PERSONS WHO REQUIRE AND QUALIFY FOR MULTIPLE CERTIFICATIONS. IN ESTABLISHING EACH CLASSIFICATION, THE BOARD shall differentiate the various levels of complexity to be encountered in water and wastewater ~~treatment plant~~ FACILITY operation AND THE APPROPRIATE QUALIFICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATION FOR EACH CLASS. THE BOARD SHALL SET MINIMUM EDUCATION, EXPERIENCE, EXAMINATION, AND ONGOING TRAINING REQUIREMENTS FOR EACH CLASS.

(4) The board shall maintain for each water and wastewater ~~treatment plant~~ FACILITY a minimum class of certified operators required for its ~~direct~~ supervision.

(5) The board shall establish a procedure whereby any decision of the board, THE DIVISION, OR ANY ORGANIZATION PERFORMING DUTIES ON BEHALF OF THE DIVISION can be subject to appeal TO THE BOARD.

(6) The board shall exercise such other powers and duties as are deemed necessary within the scope of this article. The board, in accordance with the "State Administrative Procedure Act", article 4 of title 24, C.R.S., shall establish criteria for the discipline or reprimand of any water ~~treatment plant operator, domestic wastewater treatment plant operator, or industrial wastewater treatment plant~~ OR WASTEWATER FACILITY operator and for the suspension or revocation of the certification of any such operator. Such criteria ~~are as follows~~ SHALL INCLUDE BUT SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO:

(b) Submitting false or misleading information on any document provided to the ~~department or the board~~ DEPARTMENT, THE BOARD, OR ANY ORGANIZATION ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD;

(6.5) THE DIVISION SHALL HAVE THE PRIMARY RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE INVESTIGATION OF INSTANCES OF POSSIBLE MISCONDUCT BY WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITY OPERATORS AND SHALL REPORT THE RESULTS OF ANY INVESTIGATION TO THE BOARD AND MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING APPROPRIATE DISCIPLINARY ACTION TO THE BOARD. THE BOARD MAY PROMULGATE RULES IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 4 OF TITLE 24, C.R.S., TO ALLOW THE DIVISION TO IMMEDIATELY SUSPEND OR REVOKE CERTIFICATIONS WHERE SUCH IMMEDIATE ACTION IS NECESSARY TO PROTECT THE PUBLIC HEALTH OR ENVIRONMENT.

**SECTION 5.** 25-9-105 (1), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

**25-9-105. Water treatment facility operator.** (1) Persons who by specifically relevant examination, EDUCATION, and experience are found to be qualified for certification as water treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY operators OR WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM OPERATORS shall be certified as having the minimum qualifications required for each of the respective classes as ~~follows~~: ESTABLISHED BY THE BOARD BY RULES PROMULGATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 4 OF TITLE 24, C.R.S.

(a) ~~Class D. An applicant must indicate by written examination his knowledge of basic water treatment principles, chlorination procedures, bacteriological testing~~

techniques and standards, department water quality standards, pumping and storage principles, and good housekeeping and safety practices.

(b) ~~Class C.~~ In addition to the knowledge required for a Class D applicant, the ~~Class C~~ applicant must indicate by written examination his knowledge of control procedures, including but not limited to the purpose, use, and procedures used for the basic chemical, physical, and biological tests. The applicant must also have two years' experience working in a water treatment facility.

(c) ~~Class B.~~ In addition to the knowledge required for a Class C applicant, the ~~Class B~~ applicant must indicate by written examination his knowledge of the operation and maintenance of filter units, the principles of coagulation and sedimentation, the maintenance and safety of auxiliary equipment, and the principles of taste and odor control. The applicant must also have three years' experience working in a water treatment facility.

(d) ~~Class A.~~ In addition to the knowledge required for a Class B applicant, the ~~Class A~~ applicant must indicate by written examination the applicant's knowledge of the interpretation of results of chemical, physical, and biological control analyses; maintenance and operational procedures; housekeeping; corrosion control; cross-connection control; and supervisory control techniques. The applicant must also have four years' experience working in a water treatment facility.

**SECTION 6.** 25-9-106 (1), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

**25-9-106. Domestic wastewater treatment facility operator.** (1) Persons who by specifically relevant examination, EDUCATION, and experience are found to be qualified for certification as domestic wastewater treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY operators OR WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM OPERATORS shall be certified as having the minimum qualifications required for each of the respective classes as follows: ESTABLISHED BY THE BOARD BY RULES PROMULGATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 4 OF TITLE 24, C.R.S.

(a) ~~Class D.~~ A ~~Class D~~ applicant must indicate by written examination his knowledge of basic principles concerning pumping, grit, grease, sludge, sedimentation, hydraulics, chlorination, pumps, motors, state water quality control commission stream standards, and good housekeeping and safety practices.

(b) ~~Class C.~~ In addition to the knowledge required for a Class D applicant, the ~~Class C~~ applicant must indicate by written examination his knowledge of wastewater treatment principles, settling characteristics of solids and grit, separate sludge digestion, sludge processing, sampling, and basic chemical, physical, and biological tests. The applicant must also have two years' experience working in a wastewater treatment facility.

(c) ~~Class B.~~ In addition to the knowledge required for a Class C applicant, the ~~Class B~~ applicant must indicate by written examination his knowledge of the maintenance and operation of biological units, sedimentation units, and auxiliary equipment, and his experience in performing basic chemical, physical, and biological tests. The applicant must also have three years' experience working in a wastewater treatment facility.

~~(d) Class A. In addition to the knowledge required for a Class B applicant, the Class A applicant must indicate by written examination the applicant's knowledge in the interpretation of the results of chemical, physical, and biological control analyses; maintenance and operational procedures; and record-keeping, corrosion control, cross-connection control, and supervisory control techniques. The applicant must also have four years' experience working in a wastewater treatment facility.~~

**SECTION 7.** 25-9-106.2 (1), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

**25-9-106.2. Industrial wastewater treatment facility operator.** (1) Persons who by specifically relevant examination, EDUCATION, and experience are found to be qualified for certification as industrial wastewater treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY operators shall be certified as having the minimum qualifications required for each of the respective classes as ~~follows~~: ESTABLISHED BY THE BOARD BY RULES PROMULGATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 4 OF TITLE 24, C.R.S.

~~(a) Class C. The Class C applicant shall indicate by written examination the applicant's knowledge of wastewater treatment principles; settling characteristics of solids and grit; separate sludge digestion; sampling; basic chemical, physical, and biological tests; air stripping; standard clarification; neutralization; and sludge dewatering. The applicant shall also have two years' experience working in a wastewater treatment facility.~~

~~(b) Class B. In addition to the knowledge required for a Class C applicant, the Class B applicant shall indicate by written examination the applicant's knowledge of chemical coagulation; activated carbon absorption; ultrafiltration; microfiltration; and the maintenance and operation of biological units, sedimentation units, and auxiliary equipment. The applicant shall also have three years' experience working in a wastewater treatment facility.~~

~~(c) Class A. In addition to the knowledge required for a Class B applicant, the Class A applicant shall indicate by written examination the applicant's knowledge in the interpretation of the results of chemical, physical, and biological control analyses; chemical conversion, ion exchange, electrolytic conversion, and reverse osmosis; maintenance and operational procedures; and record-keeping and supervisory control techniques. The applicant shall also have four years' experience working in a wastewater treatment facility.~~

**SECTION 8.** Article 9 of title 25, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended BY THE ADDITION OF A NEW SECTION to read:

**25-9-106.3. Multiple facility operator.** PERSONS WHO BY SPECIFICALLY RELATED EXAMINATION, EDUCATION, AND EXPERIENCE ARE FOUND TO BE QUALIFIED FOR CERTIFICATION IN MORE THAN ONE CATEGORY OF FACILITY OPERATORS SHALL BE CERTIFIED AS HAVING THE MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS REQUIRED FOR SUCH APPLICABLE MULTIPLE FACILITY OPERATOR CLASSES AS THE BOARD MAY ESTABLISH BY RULES PROMULGATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 4 OF TITLE 24, C.R.S. SUCH CLASSES OF MULTIPLE FACILITY OPERATORS SHALL BE DESIGNED TO MINIMIZE THE NUMBER OF SEPARATE EXAMINATIONS AND SEPARATE OPERATOR CERTIFICATIONS THAT MUST BE HELD BY PERSONS WORKING FOR SMALL SYSTEMS, PERSONS IN THE PRIVATE SECTOR PERFORMING WORK FOR A MUNICIPALITY OR INDUSTRY, AND OTHER

CATEGORIES AND CLASSES WHERE A MULTIPLE FACILITY OPERATOR CERTIFICATION WOULD BE EFFICIENT AND MEET THE GOALS OF THIS ARTICLE. SUCH MULTIPLE FACILITY CERTIFICATIONS MAY CONTAIN CONDITIONS ESTABLISHED BY THE BOARD RESTRICTING THE CERTIFICATION TO SPECIFIC FACILITIES, TYPES OF FACILITIES, OR ACTIVITIES.

**SECTION 9.** 25-9-106.5, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

**25-9-106.5. Education and experience - substitution allowed.** WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITY OPERATOR APPLICANTS MUST HAVE A HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA OR HAVE SUCCESSFULLY COMPLETED THE GED AS DEFINED IN SECTION 22-33-102 (4.5), C.R.S.; EXCEPT THAT EXPERIENCE OR RELEVANT TRAINING MAY BE SUBSTITUTED FOR THE HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA OR GED. Education, TRAINING AS ESTABLISHED UNDER SECTION 25-9-104 (2), and cross-experience may be substituted for experience requirements for certification as a ~~Class C, Class B, or Class A~~ water ~~treatment plant~~ FACILITY operator, AS A WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM OPERATOR, as a ~~Class C, Class B, or Class A~~ domestic wastewater ~~treatment plant~~ FACILITY operator, AS A WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM OPERATOR, ~~or as a Class C, Class B, or Class A~~ AN industrial wastewater treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY operator, OR AS A MULTIPLE FACILITY OPERATOR; except that at least fifty percent of any experience requirement shall be met by actual on-site operating experience in a water ~~treatment~~ facility or a wastewater ~~treatment~~ facility, as the case may be. FOR THE LOWEST CLASSIFICATION OF OPERATOR IN EACH CATEGORY, THE BOARD MAY ESTABLISH RULES ALLOWING COMPLETE SUBSTITUTION OF EDUCATION FOR EXPERIENCE FOR ANY APPLICANT WHO PASSES THE APPLICABLE EXAMINATION. For purposes of this section "cross-experience" means that experience as a wastewater ~~plant~~ TREATMENT FACILITY operator may be substituted for experience requirements for certification as water treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY operator and vice versa.

**SECTION 10.** 25-9-107, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

**25-9-107. Certification procedure.** (1) Any individual possessing the required EDUCATION AND experience may apply ~~to~~ FOR CERTIFICATION IN THE MANNER DESIGNATED BY the board on such forms as required and ~~furnished~~ APPROVED by the board. The application shall be accompanied by such fee as required by section 25-9-108. ~~The board shall admit for examination~~ Those applicants who meet the minimum qualifications as established by ~~regulations~~ RULES of the board PROMULGATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 4 OF TITLE 24, C.R.S., for certification SHALL BE ADMITTED FOR EXAMINATION.

(2) When an individual desires certification in a field other than ~~that~~ THE FIELD in which ~~he~~ THE INDIVIDUAL has experience, ~~his~~ THE INDIVIDUAL'S experience shall be evaluated by the board OR AS DIRECTED BY THE BOARD. The certificate issued is to be based upon the knowledge demonstrated by the applicant through examination and ~~his~~ THE INDIVIDUAL'S verified record of work experience in water and wastewater ~~treatment plant~~ FACILITY operation.

(3) Certificates shall be awarded by the board OR AT THE DIRECTION OF THE BOARD for a period of ~~five~~ THREE years only to those applicants successfully meeting all of the requirements.

(4) (a) Certificates shall be renewed upon payment of the required renewal fee and ~~passage of a specifically relevant examination by~~ A SHOWING THAT the applicant FOR RENEWAL HAS MET THE REQUIREMENTS ESTABLISHED BY THE BOARD FOR ONGOING TRAINING.

(b) If any operator fails to renew the operator's certification before the expiration date of such certification, such certification is expired. If a certification expires because of failure to renew before the expiration date of such certification, the operator may renew the certification up to two years after the expiration date upon paying the required renewal fee and ~~passing the required examination~~ MEETING THE APPLICABLE ONGOING TRAINING REQUIREMENTS FOR THE CERTIFICATION BEING RENEWED. If an operator does not renew a certification within two years after the expiration date of such certification, ~~the board shall revoke~~ the certification IS AUTOMATICALLY REVOKED AND AN APPLICANT FOR RECERTIFICATION MUST MEET ALL THE REQUIREMENTS FOR CERTIFICATION AS A NEW APPLICANT.

(4.5) (Deleted by amendment, L. 96, p. 360, § 8, effective July 1, 1996.)

(5) The board, upon application therefor, may issue a certificate, without examination, in a comparable classification to any person who holds a certificate in any state, territory, or possession of the United States or any country, providing the requirements for certification of operators under which the person's certificate was issued do not conflict with the provisions of this article and are of a standard not lower than that specified by regulations adopted under this article. WHERE THERE IS A QUESTION AS TO THE LEVEL OF CERTIFICATION THAT SHOULD BE GRANTED, THE BOARD MAY AUTHORIZE SPECIAL EXAMINATION OR OTHER PROCEDURES TO CONFIRM THE APPROPRIATE CERTIFICATION LEVEL.

(6) to (8) (Deleted by amendment, L. 96, p. 360, § 8, effective July 1, 1996.)

**SECTION 11.** 25-9-108 (1), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

**25-9-108. Fees.** (1) Each application for certification shall be accompanied by a fee in the amount of fifteen dollars ~~which~~ THAT is not refundable. ~~and which will include the expenses for the first examination taken by the applicant Examination fees in the amount of ten dollars shall be paid for each additional examination taken in any class. Reexamination fees in the amount of ten dollars will be paid for second and succeeding examinations in any class. Renewal fees in the amount of five dollars shall be paid prior to the issuance of a renewal certificate by the board.~~ THE BOARD SHALL ADOPT RULES THAT SET PROGRAM FEES IN ADDITION TO THE NONREFUNDABLE APPLICATION FEE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF ARTICLE 4 OF TITLE 24, C.R.S., AND SUCH FEES SHALL REFLECT THE ACTUAL COSTS OF ADMINISTERING THE PROGRAM AS SET FORTH IN SECTION 25-9-104 (1). SUCH FEES MAY BE COLLECTED AND RETAINED BY A NONPROFIT CORPORATION SELECTED AND APPOINTED BY THE BOARD PURSUANT TO SECTION 25-9-104 (1) TO PAY FOR ITS ACTUAL COSTS TO ADMINISTER THE PROGRAM AS APPROVED BY THE BOARD THROUGH DULY ADOPTED RULES. HOWEVER, ANY SUCH NONPROFIT CORPORATION SHALL REMIT A PORTION OF THE FEE IN THE AMOUNT OF FIVE DOLLARS FOR EACH NEW AND RENEWAL CERTIFICATE TO BE ISSUED TO THE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 24-36-103, C.R.S. WITH THE APPROVAL OF THE BOARD, all moneys ~~received by the board~~ MAY BE PAID TO THE NONPROFIT CORPORATION AND EXCEPT

FOR THE FIVE DOLLARS FOR NEW AND RENEWAL CERTIFICATIONS MAY BE RETAINED BY THE NONPROFIT CORPORATION TO DEFRAY PROGRAM EXPENSES. ALTERNATIVELY, IF CERTIFICATION AND RENEWAL FEES ARE RECEIVED DIRECTLY BY THE BOARD, ALL MONEYS shall be deposited with the department of the treasury pursuant to the provisions of section 24-36-103, C.R.S.

**SECTION 12.** 25-9-109, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

**25-9-109. Use of title.** Only a person who has been qualified by the board as a certified ~~water treatment plant operator, certified domestic wastewater treatment plant operator, or certified industrial wastewater treatment plant operator~~ and who possesses a valid certificate attesting to this certification in this state shall have the right and privilege of using the title "certified water treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY operator, class ....", "certified domestic wastewater treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY operator, class ....", ~~or~~ "certified industrial wastewater treatment plant operator, class ....", "CERTIFIED WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM OPERATOR, CLASS ....", "CERTIFIED WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM OPERATOR, CLASS ....", OR "MULTIPLE FACILITIES OPERATOR, CLASS ....".

**SECTION 13.** 25-9-110, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

**25-9-110. Violations - penalty.** (1) It is unlawful for any person to represent himself or herself as a certified ~~water treatment plant operator of any class, a certified domestic wastewater treatment plant operator of any class, or a certified industrial wastewater treatment plant operator~~ OF ANY CATEGORY AND of any class without first being so certified by the board and without being the holder of a current valid certificate issued by the board. Any person violating the provisions of this subsection (1) is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine of not more than three ~~hundred~~ THOUSAND dollars.

(2) (a) It is unlawful for any owner of a water treatment ~~plant or~~ FACILITY, a DOMESTIC OR INDUSTRIAL wastewater treatment ~~plant~~ FACILITY, A WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM, OR A WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM in the state of Colorado to allow the ~~plant~~ FACILITY to be operated without the supervision of a certified operator of the classification required by the board for the specific ~~plant~~ FACILITY. ~~Any owner violating the provisions of this subsection (2) is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine of not more than three hundred dollars for each violation. Each day of violation constitutes a separate offense.~~

(b) NOTWITHSTANDING THE PROVISIONS OF PARAGRAPH (a) OF THIS SUBSECTION (2), A SEDIMENTARY POND MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH A PERMIT ISSUED BY THE DIVISION OF MINERALS AND GEOLOGY THAT DOES NOT REQUIRE A PERMIT ISSUED BY THE WATER QUALITY CONTROL DIVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH SHALL NOT REQUIRE THE SUPERVISION OF A CERTIFIED OPERATOR.

(3) WHENEVER THE DIVISION HAS REASON TO BELIEVE THAT A VIOLATION OF SUBSECTION (2) OF THIS SECTION HAS OCCURRED, THE DIVISION SHALL CAUSE WRITTEN NOTICE TO BE SERVED PERSONALLY OR BY CERTIFIED MAIL, RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED, UPON THE ALLEGED VIOLATOR OR THEIR AGENT FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS. THE NOTICE SHALL STATE THE PROVISION OF SUBSECTION (2) ALLEGED TO BE VIOLATED AND THE FACTS ALLEGED TO CONSTITUTE A VIOLATION AND IT MAY

INCLUDE SPECIFIC ACTION PROPOSED TO BE REQUIRED TO CEASE THE ALLEGED VIOLATION. THE DIVISION SHALL REQUIRE THE ALLEGED VIOLATOR TO ANSWER EACH ALLEGED VIOLATION.

(4) UPON BEING SERVED WITH ANY NOTICE GIVEN UNDER SUBSECTION (3) OF THIS SECTION, THE ALLEGED VIOLATOR MAY REQUEST A PUBLIC HEARING. SUCH REQUEST SHALL BE FILED IN WRITING WITH THE DIVISION NO LATER THAN THIRTY DAYS AFTER SERVICE OF THE NOTICE. IF SUCH A REQUEST IS MADE, A HEARING SHALL BE HELD WITHIN A REASONABLE TIME. HEARINGS HELD PURSUANT TO THIS SUBSECTION (4) SHALL BE CONDUCTED BEFORE THE BOARD IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 24-4-105, C.R.S. THE DETERMINATION OF THE BOARD FOLLOWING A HEARING SHALL BE CONSIDERED FINAL AGENCY ACTION AS TO WHETHER A VIOLATION HAS OCCURRED.

(5) ANY OWNER OF A WATER TREATMENT FACILITY, A DOMESTIC OR INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY, A WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM, OR A WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IN THE STATE OF COLORADO WHO VIOLATES SUBSECTION (2) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE SUBJECT TO A CIVIL PENALTY OF NOT MORE THAN THREE HUNDRED DOLLARS PER DAY FOR EACH DAY DURING WHICH SUCH VIOLATION OCCURS. ANY CIVIL PENALTY COLLECTED UNDER THIS SECTION SHALL BE CREDITED TO THE GENERAL FUND.

(6) UPON APPLICATION OF THE DIVISION, ANY PENALTY FOR A VIOLATION OF SUBSECTION (2) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE DETERMINED BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OR HIS OR HER DESIGNEE AND MAY BE COLLECTED BY THE DIVISION THROUGH A COLLECTION ACTION INSTITUTED IN A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION. THE FINAL DECISION OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OR HIS OR HER DESIGNEE MAY BE APPEALED TO THE BOARD. A STAY OF ANY ORDER OF THE DIVISION PENDING JUDICIAL REVIEW SHALL NOT RELIEVE ANY PERSON FROM ANY LIABILITY UNDER THIS SECTION, BUT THE REASON FOR THE REQUEST FOR JUDICIAL REVIEW SHALL BE CONSIDERED IN THE DETERMINATION OF THE AMOUNT OF THE PENALTY. IN THE EVENT THAT SUCH AN ACTION IS INSTITUTED FOR THE COLLECTION OF SUCH PENALTY, THE COURT MAY CONSIDER THE APPROPRIATENESS OF THE AMOUNT OF THE PENALTY IF THE PARTY AGAINST WHOM THE PENALTY WAS ASSESSED RAISES THE ISSUE.

**SECTION 14. Safety clause.** The general assembly hereby finds, determines, and declares that this act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety.

Approved: May 23, 2000